| ue D?E‘;m}f}? r‘?ﬁ
SO
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIALR? 19 44 & 34
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RECEIVED
The Washington Center for Peace and
Justice, Inc.
1726 Reisterstown Road, Suite 2006
Baltimore, Maryland 212006
Plaintiff,
V. Civil Case No.

United States Department of State
2201 C Street NW
Washington, DC 20520

Michael Hersh
1014 E. 10% St
Brooklyn, NY 11230

Miriam Hersh

1014 E. 10™ St
Brooklyn, NY 11230

Defendants.
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COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

Plaintiff, The Washington Center for Peace and Justice, Inc., by and through
counsel, Joshua M. Ambush and The Law Offices of Joshua M. Ambush, LLC files this
complaint for injunctive relief on behalf of Isaac Hersh against Defendants, United States
Department of State, and Michael and Miriam Hersh. Plaintiff is seeking injunctive relief

in the form of the immediate visitation of Isaac Hersh in Jamaica by U.S. Consular



officials for the purpose of determining his welfare, and if necessary, providing him with

emergency medical care and other relief as determined and directed by this Court.

This action is brought under the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations,
Articles 5, 36 and 37; 22 CFR 71.1 and 71.6; 7 Foreign Affairs Manual (FAM)100; the

Privacy Act, and the Americans with Disabilities Act, 42 U.8.C. § 12101, et seq.

Plaintiff contends that Defendant United States Department of State (hereinafter
also known as DOS) for has not done enough to determine the welfare of Isaac Hersh or

to provide him with the medical care he very likely needs and is entitled to.

Defendants Michael and Miriam Hersh are the parents of [saac Hersh, a minor
child. They cruelly and maliciously arranged to have Isaac Hersh forcibly brought to an
alleged “private residential treatment program™ or “behavior modification facility” named
Tranquility Bay, aka Caribbean Center for Change, C/0 Olde Warf Hotel, Treasure
Beach, St. Elizabeth Parish, Jamaica, West Indies, on June 13, 2007. Tranquility Bay is

notorious for subjecting the minor children sent there to all manner and type of abuse.

Defendant DOS has witnessed abuse at Tranquility Bay first hand. Consular
officials have gone to Tranquility Bay numerous times on welfare visits, most recently in
October, 2007. Although Isaac Hersh was in the Tranquility Bay compound at the time of

the consular visit, the consular officials were denied access to him.



A parent has a right to refuse to sign a waiver allowing disclosure of any
information regarding their minor ¢hild. Notwithstanding their expectation and right to
privacy, exceptions exist to the Privacy Act in cases where the subject’s health and safety
is in question. Plamtiff The Washington Center for Peace and Justice, Inc. has obtained
credible information that Isaac Hersh has been subjected to abuse while he has been in
Tranquility Bay. This information is also known to Defendants Michael and Miriam

Hersh.

In light of this revelation, as well as many other disclosures about the treatment of
children sent to Tranquility Bay, any conceivable basis for withholding consular officials
from visiting Isaac Hersh to determine his welfare or of providing him with medical care
should be viewed as a nefarious effort to conceal abuse.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

1. This Court has both subject matter jurisdiction over the consular relations claim as
well as the ADA claim, and personal jurisdiction over the Defendant DOS pursuant to 28
U.S.C. § 1331 and 28 U.8.C. § 1332, This Couwrt alsa has diversity jurisdiction over the
parties. This Court also has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1331.
2. Venue is proper pursuant to the provisions of 28 U.8.C. § 1391(b).

PARTIES
3. Plaintiff The Washington Center for Peace and Justice, Ine. (hereinafter also known
as The Center) is a non-profit, non-partisan organization dedicated to assisting victims of

various forms of injustice by providing legal, medical and social aid.



4 Plaintiff The Washington Center for Peace and Justice, Inc. is a 501 (c) (3)
organization incorporated in the State of Maryland. The Center educates the public
regarding foreign sovereign states and groups that sponsor and promote terrorism and
human rights abuses and retains attorneys 10 represent victims of human rights abuses
when they cannot do so for themselves.

5 Defendant DOS is a Department of the Executive Branch of the United States
Government. DOS is an agency within the meaning of 42 U.5.C. §12101.

6. Defendant Michael Hersh is the father of Isaac Hersh. Helisa resident of the State
of New York.

7 Defendant Miriam Hersh is the mother of Isaac Hersh. She is a resident of the State
of New York.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

2. Mic:hael.and Miriam Hersh are the parents of eight children, including twin 16 year
old boys. Isaac Hersh, date of birth July 29, 1991, is one of the twins.

9.  The family lived at 817 Avenue M, Brooklyn, New York 11230 until spring 2002.
10. The family went to Israel in Spring 2002, reportedly just for the Passover holiday.
In reality, unbeknownst to the children, the parents planned on living there permanently.
The family abruptly returned to New York approximately four years later when
Defendant Michael Hersh was charged by Child Protective Services with child abuse.
The charge stermmed from an investigation and complaint brought by the twins’ school
that Defendant Michael Hersh forced them to take medication without a prescription so

as to control them.



11. The child abuse investigation in Israel began in 2004. In September 2004, Isaac
was sent to a school in Toronto, Canada.

12.  The family left Israel in 2003 and returned to their residence located at 817 Avenue
M, Brooklyn, New York, a house owned by Michael Hersh’s parents.

13. Beginning in September, 2005 Isaac Hersh attended school in Richmond, Virginia.
14. In Tuly, 2006, when Isaac was in New York for a visit, he was brutally taken by
force by unknown assailants and brought to a psychiatric facility in Long Island, New
York. |

15. The psychiatric facility contacted sought to release Isaac Hersh six weeks later,
after it was determined that he did not need their services. The facility contacted a family
that Tsaac knew in Houston, Texas and arranged for Isaac o live with them.

16. For a little more than nine months, beginning in September, 2006, Isaac lived with
that family in Houston, Texas. During that entire period, Defendants Micha,el and
Miriam Hersh made no effort to contact or visit their son Isaac.

17.  Under the pretext of assisting Isaac in obtaining a passport for a summer job in
Canada, Defendants Michael and Miriam Hersh lured Isaac back to New York on or
about June 12, 2007,

18. Asreported by at least two eyewitnesses, at approximately 5 a.m. on the moming of
June 13, 2007, Isaac was seen being foreibly dragged out of his parent’s hounse by two
burly, Caucasian males.

19. Isaac was crying and repeatedly pleaded and begged for them not to take him away.

He was handcuffed behind his back and struggled to resist.



20. When neighbors and relatives asked about the whereabouts of [saac, they were
simply told that he was sent away to a school.

21, Tt was not until four months later when it was confirmed that Isaac was sentto a
“reform” type school called Tranquility Bay, located in Jamaica.

29 A friend of Isaac received a call from someone who reported that he was personally
in Tranquility Bay and saw Isaac Hersh there. Isaac had asked him to contact his friend
and twin brother fo tell them where he was and to ask that they get him out of there. This
eyewitness also reported that he saw Isaac being abused by the staff of Tranquility Bay.
Isaac’s twin brother subsequently received an email sent surreptitiously from Isaac
confirming that he was in Tranquility Bay.

23. Tranquility Bay is a private residential facility for youth that is part of, and operates
according to the guidclines of World Wide Association of Specialty Programs and
Schools (WWASPS) based in St. George, Utah.

24. Tranquility Bay is barbed wire fenced and guarded compound. Numerous
allegations of abuse have been documented about the treatﬁlent of the juvenile youths
sent there,

95 Presently, there is a suit pending before the U.S. District Court for the District of
Utah on behalf of 140 former students who were in WWASPS facilities, inctuding
Tranquility Bay.(see Wood et al. v. WWASPS, et al., Civil Case No 2:06-CV-708 DS,
(2006)) The complaint details numerous allegations of abuse, including children who
were foroed to eat their own vomit, bound and tied by their hands and feet, chained and
locked in dog cages, small boxes and basements, forced to stay in isolation for periods of

time, forced to assume distorted and painful physical positions for long periods of time,



forced to live in unsanitary living conditions, denied adequate food, denied even a
minimally sufficient education, denied proper medical treatment and care, and numerous
forms of sexual abuse. The complaint further alleges that children in these facilities were
subject to emotional abuse, such as near parental and societal isolation, were deprived
from uging bathroom facilities, deprived of sleep, denied religious affiliation, and forced
to eat rotten food.

26. According to the International Survivors Action Committee (ISAC), a non-profit
group that assists victims of facilities such as those run by, WWASPS, it has received
more complaints about Tranquility Bay than any other facility. The complaints made to
ISAC include beatings, brutal physical restraint resulting in broken bones, sexual assault,
food deprivation, and excessive use of isolation known as observation placement known
as “OpP.”

27. Congress is currently investigating allegations of child abuse in residential
treatment programs, such as Tranquility Bay. The Committee on Education and the
Workforce, chaired by representative George Miller of California, has asked the
Government Accountability Office to investigate allegations of fraud and abuse, in
facilities such as those Tun by WWASPS. Congressman Miller’s committee is currently
holding hearings on this issue.

28 Defendant Michael Hersh is presently the CEQ of Chevra Hatzalah Volunteer
Ambulance Corps, Inc., the largest all-volunteer ambulance service in the United States,
located at 1340 East 9th Street, Brooklyn, New York 11230.

70 Defendant Michael Hersh is a former post-graduate student of Yeshiva Chaim

Berlin in Brooklyn, New York and a disciple of Rabbi Aaron Schechter, dean of the



Yeshiva. He is a member of the close-knit community that revolves around the Yeshiva
in the Flatbush neighborhood of Brooklyn, New York.

30. Numerous family members and community members have approached Defendants
Michael and Miriam Hersh to urge them to remove Isaac from Tranquility Bay. They
have repeatedly warned them of the abusive and harmful activities that take place there.
Their efforts to convinee Defendants Michael and Miriam Hersh to remove [saac from
Tranquility Bay have proven futile.

31. Moreover, upon information and belief, Defendant Michael Hersh has sought and
obtained the assistance of prominent community members in resisting efforts to transfer
Isaac out of Tranquility Bay.

32. Defendant Michael Hersh has also reportedly threatened witnesses and taken
retaliatory measures against them,

33. Plaintiff The Washington Center for Peace and Justice, Inc. has brought this action
on behalf of Isaac Hersh in the belief that his life is endangered every second that he
remains in Tranquility Bay.

VIOLATION OF DEFENDANT’S REGULATORY DUTY TO PROTECT
PLAINTIFF

34. Plaintiff incorporates herein by reference all prior paragraphs as if fully set forth at
length.

35. Defendant Department of State, acting through the U.S. Consulate of the country of
Jamaica, violated its regulatory duty to protect Plaintiff. Regulation 22 CFR 71.1

provides that:



Officers of the Foreign Service shall perform such duties in connect with
the protection of American nationals abroad as may be imposed upon
them by rules and regulations prescribed by the Secretary of State.
36.  Similarly, Regulation 22 CFR 71.6 provides that:
Officers of the Foreign Service shall extend every possible aid and assistance within
their power to distressed American citizens within their districts, but they shall not
expend the funds nor pledge the credit of the Government of the United States for this
purpose, except in the case of American seamen, Or except as authorized by the
Department of State. (emphasis added)
17. .8, Consulate officials’ specific duties to distressed American citizens abroad
include:

a. Conducting welfare checks in regard to U.S. citizens abroad, as codified
by Article 5, 36, and 37 of the Vienna Convention on Consular Relations,

b. For victims of child abuse, coordinating with state child advocacy centets
and colleagues in the U.S. Department of Justice Office for Victims of
Crime, and state victims of crime programs.

c. Reporting information about an individual, even without that
individual’s consent, or the consent of that individual’s guardian or
parent in the event of a minor, when the subjects’ health and safefy is
in question. {(¢emphasis added)

d. Providing emergency medical assistance, including, but not limited to,

medical examinations, emergency treatment, non-elective surgery, as well



as preventive and/or protective medications and medical supphes, in
accordance with regulation 22 CFR 71.10.
38,  Defendant DOS violated each of these duties by failing to provide the above-
mentioned services to Isaac Hersh. Upon information and belief, Defendants Michael and
Mitiam Hersh acted to prevent Defendant DOS from providing the above-mentioned
services to Isaac Hersh.
39. Because of Defeﬁdants’ acts and omissions, Isaac Hersh's ¢ivil and constitutional
rights have been violated.
DISCRIMINATION ON THE BASIS OF DISABILITY IN VIOLATION OF

THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILIES ACT
42. U.8.C. SECTION 12101 ET SEQ.

40. Plaintiff hereby incorporates by reference all previous paragraphs as if fully set
forth herein.

41. Plaintiff further states that Isaac Hersh suffers from a disability within the meaning
and scope of the ADA, 42 U.S.C. § 12102. Accordingly, Isaac Hershis a member of the
class of persons protected by 42 U.S.C. §12132, which makes it unlawful for a public
entity to discriminate against an individual with a disability or to deny the benefits of the
services, programs, or activities of a public entity to a person with a disability.

42.  As alleged herein, Plaintiff is informed and believed and thereon alleges that
Defendant DOS discriminated against Isaac Hersh because of his disability and denied
him the benefits of public services, programs, and activities as a result of his disability
by, amongst other things, its failure, through omissions of the U.S. Consular of Jamaica,
to perform the services previously outlined in this Complaint.

43. Defendants® acts and omissions, as alleged herein, were in violation of the
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ADA, 42 U.S.C. Section 12101 et seq. The ADA imposes certain duties upon defendants
concerning discrimination against persons, such as Isaac Hersh, on the basis of his
disability. Indeed, the ADA was intended to prevent the type of injury and damage set
forth herein. Isaac Hersh is a member of the class of persons intended to be protected by
the ADA,

44.  As aresult, Isaac Hersh’s ¢ivil and constitutional rights have been violated.

REQUESTED RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff prays that this Court:
45. Order Defendant DOS to immediately conduct a welfare visit to Isaac Hersh in
Tranquility Bay, Jamaica.
46. Otrder Defendant DOS to immediately provide medical and dental care to Isaac
Hersh.
47. Order Defendant DOS to immediately aid in any and 511 assistance needed by Isaac
Hersh.
48. Order Defendant DOS to coordinate the removal of Isaac Hersh from Tranquility
Bay.
49. Order Defendant DOS to report the results of its welfare visit directly to this Court.
50. Order that Isaac Hersh be brought before this Court so that he may testify in these
proceedings.
51. Issue a protective order for Isaac Hersh from Defendants Michael and Miriam
Hersh.
52.  Order Defendant DOS to coordinate with Department of Justice to investigate any

possible criminal violations stemming from this case.
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53. Enjoin Defendants Michael and Miriam Hersh or their agents from interfering with

this Court’s QOrders.

54. Enjoin Defendants Michael and Miriam Hersh from destroying records, documents
or other evidence relating to this case.

55. Hold an emergency hearing on these matters.

56. For such other and further relief that is determined by this Court.

57. Grant leave to amend this complaint as the interests of justice require.

Respectfully Submitted, M/

ua M. Ambush, Esquire '

Bar No: MD2705

Law Offices of Joshua M, Ambush, LLC
Hilton Plaza

1726 Reisterstown Road, Suite 206
Baltimore, Maryland 21208

Phone: 410-484-2070

Fax: 410-484-9330
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

)
The Washington Center for Peace and )
Justice, Inc. )
)
Plaintiff, )
)
)
v ) Civil Case No.
)
)
United States Department of State, etal. )
)
)
)
Defendants. }
)

ORDER
UPON CONSIDERATION of the Complaint brought by The Washington Center
for Peace and Justice, Inc., and any opposition thereto, it is this day of

. 2008, hereby ORDERED that Plaintiff’s request for Injunctive

Relief are hereby GRANTED.

Judge
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

)
The Washington Center for Peace and )
Justice, Inc. )
)
Plaintiff, )
)

v ) Civil Case No.
)
)
United States Department of State, et. al )
)
Defendants )
)

AFFIDAVIT

I, Joshua M. Ambush, hereby affirm under penalty of perjury that the information
contained in the complaint in the above captioned case is accurate and true to the best of
my knowledge and belief.

I personally obtained statements from witnesses with first hand knowledge of the
events and information detailed in the complaint. Some individuals have requested that

their identities be protected at this time, but have agreed to release their information

under seal, or in camera, or upon request that they tgstify to these mm

Jgfhua M. Ambush, Esqufire

Bar No: MD2705

Law Offices of Joshua M, Ambush, LL.C
Hilton Plaza

1726 Reisterstown Road, Suite 206
Baltimore, Maryland 21208

Phone: 410-484-2070

Fax: 410-484-9330

Phone: 410-484-2070

Fax: 410-484-9330
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